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INTRODUCTION
This Brief accompanies the Response/Opposition to the Motion to Dismiss (“MTD #36”), filed by
Defendant World Wildlife Fund, Inc. (“WWF-US”), and the Response/Opposition to the Motion to
Dismiss (“MTD #39”), supported by Brief #40, filed by Certain Defendants. Both Motions were filed on
10/13/2016. The Certain Defendants are Climate Action Network (“CAN”), U.S. Climate Action
Network Corp. (“USCAN”), Ceres Inc. (“Ceres”), Environmental Grantmakers Association Corp. (“EGA”),
The Ford Foundation (“Ford Foundation”), Generation Investment Management LLP (“GIM-UK”),
Generation Investment Management US LLP (“GIM-US”), Rockefeller Brothers Fund Inc. (“RBF”), Sierra
Club Foundation Corp. (“Sierra Club F”), and The Pew Charitable Trusts (“Certain Defendants”). The
Certain Defendants together with WWF-US, will be referred to herein as the “Moving Defendants.”
I filed the original Complaint against multiple foreign and domestic corporations for compensatory and
punitive damages, and other available remedies, under the federal RICO statute. The Complaint
alleges that the Defendants engaged in a pattern of racketeering activity in connection with the
establishment, operation, and management of a criminal enterprise, called in the Complaint the
“Climate Alarmism Enterprise” because inflaming climate alarmism was its main theme. This suit is
brought in the public interest, with the standing of victims of racketeering activity to act as “private
attorneys general” in prosecuting racketeering activity (Rotella v. Wood, 528 U.S. 549, 556; 2000) in
mind.
The Moving Defendants moved to dismiss the Complaint under Rule 12(b)(2) for lack of personal
jurisdiction, Rule 12(b)(3) for improper venue, and Rule 12(b)(6) for failure to state a claim.
Additionally, Defendants GIM-UK, GIM-US, CAN, and the Ford Foundation moved to dismiss under Rule
12(b)(5) for insufficient service of process. Both MTD #36 and MTD #39 have totally distorted the
Complaint.

I.

Requests under Rules 12(b)(2) and (3) shall be Denied

This Court does have personal jurisdiction over every Moving Defendant. The venue is proper for every
Moving Defendant.
A. A defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction where it “has ‘certain minimum contacts with
[the forum state] such that the maintenance of the suit does not offend traditional notions of
fair play and substantial justice.’” (Int’l Energy Ventures Mgmt., L.L.C. v. United Energy Grp.,
Ltd., 818 F.3d 193, 212) [5th Cir. 2016], quoting Int’l Shoe Co. v. Washington, 326 U.S. 310, 316
3
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(1945)). All the Moving Defendants had more than minimum contacts with Texas. Additionally,
Moving Defendants CAN, USCAN, WWF-US, Ceres, and Sierra Club F solicited and received
substantial donations from the residents of Texas, and especially from the Northern District of
Texas. Other allegedly charitable Moving Defendants directed these solicitations and benefited
from the resulting donations, including using them to maintain their non-profit and/or
charitable registrations. Defendants GIM-US and GIM-UK solicited investment and marketed
their “products” (including but not limited to hot air) in Texas, and especially in the Northern
District of Texas. A substantial part of the events giving rise to this action also occurred in the
Northern District of Texas. Additional contacts the Moving Defendants had in Texas include:
causing damage to the energy facilities of Texas companies in Texas, attempting to shut down
the oil and gas industries in Texas, and stealing and embezzling money from residents of Texas.
Notably, one of the salient targets of legal and illegal attacks by the Moving Defendants was
ExxonMobil, the largest Texas company, which is headquartered in the Northern District of
Texas. The Moving Defendants also victimized individuals because of their real, believed, or
falsely claimed associations with ExxonMobil. These attacks are money-making activities for
the Moving Defendants, because the Moving Defendants present them as charitable activities
aimed at “saving the world,” and they receive donations and/or tax deductions for them. Thus,
all the Moving Defendants transacted and continue to transact their affairs in the Northern
District of Texas. Establishing personal jurisdiction over any of the Defendants in this RICO case
is sufficient for establishing personal jurisdiction for the rest. The same holds for the venue.
B. Defendant World Wildlife Fund, Inc. (“WWF-US”) has accepted personal jurisdiction and venue
of this Court by filing a motion for expedited review, a request for a “RICO case standing order,”
and a motion for summary judgement in its filing ECF #21, as explained in my response ECF #24.
Thus, the Court has personal jurisdiction over all the Moving Defendants, and is the proper
venue for this lawsuit for all the Moving Defendants.
C. The forum and the venue are proper under 18 U.S. Code § 1965(a), because all the Moving
Defendants transacted a large part of their affairs in the Northern District of Texas, as described
in paragraph A above.
D. This Court also has personal jurisdiction over all the Moving Defendants under 28 U.S. Code §
1332 diversity chapter, because I am a resident of Texas, the Moving Defendants are not, and
the amount in controversy, exclusive of interest and costs, is at least $90,000, exceeding the
threshold of $75,000.
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E. The Ends of Justice require that this Court exercise jurisdiction over the Moving Defendants,
because the Moving Defendants are dispersed over multiple states, multiple countries, and
even multiple continents, but have injured and continue to injure me in Texas.

II.

Request under Rule 12(b)(5) shall be Denied

The service of the process on Defendants GIM-UK and CAN was proper and effective.
FRCP Rule 4(h) says: “Serving a Corporation, Partnership, or Association: Unless federal law provides
otherwise or the defendant's waiver has been filed, a domestic or foreign corporation, or a partnership
or other unincorporated association that is subject to suit under a common name, must be served…”
In this case, arising under RICO, U.S. 18 U.S.C. § 1965(d) does provide otherwise: “All other [than
subpoena] process in any action or proceeding under this chapter may be served on any person in any
judicial district in which such person resides, is found, has an agent, or transacts his affairs.”
Private citizen Al Gore is a founder, co-owner and the Chairman of GIM-UK. GIM-UK transacts a
substantial part of its affairs through GIM-US, its subsidiary in New York, NY. Defendant GIM-UK was
found in its GIM-US office in New York, and properly and effectively served there. The returned
summons has been filed as ECF #11.
Defendant CAN is a nominally apex entity of climate alarmism worldwide. It claims 1,100 member
organizations worldwide, operated through a network of regional “nodes.” Defendant CAN was
founded in 1989 and putatively incorporated in Germany, but is currently located in Beirut, Lebanon.
For a few years, Defendant CAN was headquartered in Washington, DC. In late 2011 to early 2012 it
relocated its headquarters from Washington, DC to Beirut, Lebanon. This was a wise move for the kind
of activity, in which the Defendants are engaged. Nevertheless, Defendant CAN still transacts a
substantial part of its affairs in Washington, DC through it US “node” Defendant USCAN. Defendant
CAN was found in the office of Defendant USCAN, and properly and effectively served there. The
returned summons has been filed as ECF #53 (the service was effected on September 26, but the
Returned Summons was filed late by mistake.)
Defendant CAN has acknowledged the service of process to the media, and then expressed its disdain
to this Court. A little alarmist mouthpiece, www.climatechangenews.com, described the reaction of
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CAN to this lawsuit as follows: “Wael Hmaidan, international director at Climate Action Network, one
of the defendants, dismissed the case as a waste of time.”1
GIM-US and Ford Foundation have been properly and effectively served in their respective offices, and
have not raised grounds for dismissal under Rule 12(b)(5).
The multiple cases cited by the Moving Defendants are not relevant, because none of them arises
solely from RICO.
The fact that Defendants CAN and GIM-UK signed MTD #39 together with other Moving Defendants is
further evidence that the service of process was proper and effective, and a waiver of any defense that
might claim service defects.

III.

Plausibility of the Allegations

The outlandish behavior of the Defendants, their brazenness, and their extensive media manipulation do raise
questions about the plausibility of the allegations, contained in the Complaint. Therefore, an Affidavit and
Exhibits are attached, shedding some light on the Defendants and their activities. The Affidavit contains
verification of the factual statements of the Complaint.

A. Moving Defendants WWF et al
WWF-UK, an accomplice and possibly a part of Defendant WWF-International, was co-founded by
Prince Philip in 1961, who also was its first President of WWF-UK from its foundation in 1961 to 1982.
Prince Philip was President of WWF-International from 1981 to 1996. He is now President Emeritus for
WWF-International.
Prince Philip is The Prince of the United Kingdom, The Duke of Edinburgh, and the husband of Her
Majesty Queen Elizabeth II of England, who is also the Queen of the United Kingdom of Great Britain
and Northern Ireland and of Her Other Realms and Territories, Head of the Commonwealth. In the
foreword to a book called If I were an animal (1986-1987), Prince Philip wrote: “I must confess that I
am tempted to ask for reincarnation as a particularly deadly virus, but it is perhaps going too far. I
would much rather see the human species voluntarily restrict its numbers.”2 This Foreword starts by
promoting WWF-International, and ends with a handwritten facsimile signature of Prince Philip. This
expression was made while Prince Philip was the WWF-International President.

1
2

Exhibit G2
Exhibit A1. Also attached are Exhibits A2 and A3, confirming authenticity of Exhibit A1.
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Prince Philip also expressed these or similar views in other places. I am not aware of any attempt by
WWF-International or any of its franchisees to condemn, deny, or distance themselves from these
views expressed by Prince Philip.
DDT (dichlorodiphenyltrichloroethane) is an effective insecticide, but harmless to humans unless
intentionally misused. DDT was successfully used in the US and many other countries to eradicate
malaria. Starting in the 1970s, several environmental groups (including WWF-International) and
certain UN agencies waged a campaign to ban DDT use as an anti-malaria measure in various African
countries and some other developing countries. In 2004, Richard Tren of Africa Fighting Malaria and
Roger Bate of the American Enterprise Institute wrote3:
“One of the most vociferous campaigners against the use of DDT has been the World Wildlife
Fund” (Ex. B1, page 6).
“The UNEP held five negotiating committee meetings between June 1998 and December 2000
where governments negotiated and finally agreed on the final text of the convention. At the
initial negotiating meeting it seemed that the convention might unconditionally ban DDT, a
position supported at the time by environmental groups such as the WWF. Country delegates
interviewed by the authors in Geneva in September 1999 and in Johannesburg in 2000 denied
that they had ever contemplated a ban on DDT” (Ex. B1, page 8).
This evil campaign succeeded, causing millions or even tens of millions of malaria deaths. Thus, WWFInternational professes genocide, advocates genocide, and practices genocide. The USA is the only
force in the world which is able and willing to stop them. Knowing that, WWF-International and its
accomplices attacked and continue attacking the United States and its allies, including but not limited
to the misconduct pleaded in the Complaint. WWF-US has confessed to being a “franchisee” of WWFInternational, paying it to use its brand and aiding and abetting it in other ways, thereby being another
principal in the WWF-International crimes. Currently, WWF-International and WWF-US are attempting
to commit genocide against the United States by damaging or shutting down the US energy
infrastructure, or critical parts of it. The targeted energy infrastructure includes, but is not limited to,
fossil fuels extraction and power facilities.
Notably, WWF-International was headed by a foreign Prince (who is still involved with it as President
Emeritus), who could exercise undue influence on the government of the United Kingdom, other

3

Exhibit B1.
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European countries, and the European Union agencies. The UK is diplomatically friendly to the United
States, but WWF-International succeeded in pressing significant resources of its government into the
service of the Climate Alarmism Enterprise, including other Moving Defendants.
Both WWF-US and WWF-International received and/or provided aid to each Moving Defendant and
conducted the alleged misconduct in collusion with all of them. Also, Defendants WWF-US and/or
WWF-International are members of the Moving Defendants USCAN, CAN, and Ceres (para 24 of the
Complaint, Exhibit D3). Through the Defendant Energy Foundation, the WWF Defendants received
funds from the Moving Defendants RBF and Pew Trusts (para 47 of the Complaint).
Having spent a fortune on public relations, media buys, and corrupting public officials, as well as
intimidating critics and tampering with witnesses, WWF and other Moving Defendants have created
false images of goodness for themselves which have nothing in common with the reality.

B. “The Chain of Environmental Command”
Many of the Defendants pretend to be unrelated organizations, “working independently or in parallel,”
and have made insulting innuendos when proven to be otherwise. In 2014, members of the
Environment & Public Work Committee of the US Senate published a bluntly named report: The Chain
of Environmental Command: How a Club of Billionaires and Their Foundations Control the
Environmental Movement and Obama’s EPA (the “EPW Report”), attached here as Exhibit E. This
report covers Defendants Pew Trusts, Packard Foundation, Hewlett Foundation, Rockefeller Brothers
Fund (RBF), ClimateWorks, Energy Foundation, Tides, EDF, Greenpeace, NRDC, Sierra Club,
Earthjustice, and UCS, as well as some less significant organizations, some of which might be members
of the Climate Alarmism Enterprise.
From the Executive Summary of the EPW Report:
“This report examines in detail the mechanisms and methods of a far-left environmental
machine that has been erected around a small group of powerful and active millionaires and
billionaires who exert tremendous sway over a colossal effort. Although startling in its findings,
the report covers only a small fraction of the amount of money that is being secreted and
moved around. It would be virtually impossible to examine this system completely given the
enormity of this carefully coordinated effort and the lack of transparency surrounding it.
… until today, the Billionaire’s Club operated in relative obscurity hidden under the guise of
‘philanthropy.’ The scheme to keep their efforts hidden and far removed from the political
8
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stage is deliberate, meticulous, and intended to mislead the public. … The report attempts to
decipher the patterns of ‘charitable giving.’ Often the wealthiest foundations donate large sums
to intermediaries – sometimes a pass through and sometimes a fiscal sponsor. The
intermediary then funnels the money to other 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations that the
original foundation might also directly support.
…
In advancing their cause, these wealthy liberals fully exploit the benefits of a generous tax code
… their tax deductible contributions secretly flow to a select group of left wing activists … the
financial arrangement provides significant insulation to these wealthy elite from the incidental
damage they do to the U.S. economy and average Americans.”
In “the incidental damage the do to the U.S. economy” the word incidental is used sarcastically.
Further:
“The Billionaire’s Club achieves many of its successes through the ‘capture’ of key employees at
EPA. … the Obama EPA has been deliberately staffed at the highest levels with far-left
environmental activists who have worked hand-in-glove with their former colleagues. The
green-revolving door at EPA has become a valuable asset for the far-left and their wealthy
donors. … it appears activists now at EPA also funnel government money through grants to
their former employers and colleagues. The report tracks the amount of government aid doled
out to activist groups and details a troubling disregard for ethics by certain high powered
officials.”
Such “troubling disregard for ethics by certain high powered officials” and “capture of key employees
at EPA” looks like bribery under 18 U.S.C. § 201. The EPW says this about the Moving Defendant EGA:
“Environmental Grantmakers Association (EGA) is a place where wealthy donors meet and coordinate
the distribution of grants to advance the environmental movement.” About the money recipients the
EPW reports: “Public charity activist groups propagate the false notion that they are independent,
citizen-funded groups working altruistically.” And on the subject of science: “Foundations finance
research to justify desired predetermined policy outcome. The research is then reported on by a news
outlet, oftentimes one that is also supported by the same foundation, in an effort to increase visibility.”
Regarding Defendant Energy Foundation, the EPW notes: “The Energy Foundation is a pass through
public charity utilized by the most powerful EGA members to create the appearance of a more

9
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diversified base of support” and “The Energy Foundation is the largest recipient of grants from the
foreign-funded Sea Change Foundation.”
Furthermore:
“Many of the large environmental organizations form both 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) nonprofits
that are publically advertised as separate and independent entities. In reality, they are closely
associated groups that transfer money from the Billionaire’s Club to nonprofits, and eventually
into political campaigns.”
The Introduction to the EPW Report says this about Defendants NRDC, Sierra Club, EDF, and WWF-US:
“The Natural Resources Defense Council, Sierra Club, Environmental Defense Fund, League of
Conservation Voters, Center for Biological Diversity, National Wildlife Federation, World
Wildlife Fund, and other environmental activist organizations serve as the face of the
movement and provide cover for where the secretive foundations direct their resources.”
And this about Moving Defendants EGA and RBF:
“A transcript of an early EGA strategy meeting contains a conversation about how funders can
reorganize the environmental movement. Donald Ross, who at the time represented the
Rockefeller Brothers Fund, argued that funders should craft a ‘task force approach’ to allocate
resources. ‘Funders can play a role in using money to drive, to create, ad hoc efforts, in many
cases that will have a litigation component coming from one group, a lobbying component
coming from another group, a grass roots component organizing component from yet a third
group with a structure that enables them to function well’” (page 12).
And more on Defendants NRDC, Sierra Club, EDF, and UCS:
“The groups cultivating the most EPA staff mirror the groups garnering the lion’s share of
donations from the Billionaire’s Club. These groups include the Natural Resources Defense
Council (NRDC), Sierra Club, Environmental Defense Fund (EDF), Public Interest Research
Groups (PIRGs), Union of Concerned Scientists (UCS) and Center for American Progress (CAP)”
(page 25).
“Cultivating EPA staff” likewise sounds like bribery under 18 U.S.C. § 201. The EPW Report goes on to
claim more on the foundations, including but not limited to the Defendants:

10
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“This section documents how the Billionaire’s Club both finances the creation of ‘science’ and
other studies, then pays nonprofits specialized in media relations to report on the ‘discovery.’
Foundations often finance research that bolsters their desired policy outcome. Subsequently,
another outlet they also fund will ‘report’ on the new study and other affiliated ‘news outlets’
will also report on it, in an effort to increase visibility. One could easily be fooled into believing
that the study was independent and disinterested, covered by unbiased media outlets.
However, this perception is far from the truth.
In addition to peddling studies that bolster a policy position, the foundation-backed ‘news
outlets’ use their position to rebut any criticism of the integrity of the report. Through this
process, foundations can both inject an environmental issue into the news stream, and frame
the way the public perceives it” (page 33).
“The Energy Foundation was formed as a pass through with a $20 million endowment donated
by the Pew Charitable Trusts, the Rockefeller Foundation and the John D. & Catherine T.
MacArthur Foundation” (page 46).
The EPW Report goes on and on, describing financial, personal, political, and other connections among
these Defendants and to the front groups, giving examples of outrageous conflicts of interest and
obvious corruption, and providing evidence of the Defendants’ stratagems to damage and ultimately to
destroy American industries that extract or use fossil fuels.
The EPW Report was limited to the activities of some Defendants and few other organizations in
relation to the EPA, so climate alarmism and other alleged misconduct was outside its scope:
“Finally, this report is necessarily limited in its scope and only scratches the surface in its effort
to document the money trail. Furthermore, as the Committee’s jurisdiction is limited to
oversight of the EPA and energy and environmental policy, so too this report is constrained to
reviewing activities intended to influence such policy” (page 67).
This Complaint is not based on the EPW Report.

C. Moving Defendant Ceres et al
The Defendants are stealing and/or embezzling huge amounts of public money, using the Moving
Defendant Ceres, as pleaded in details in paras 144-155. Ceres is brazenly open about this activity, as
demonstrated by Exhibits D1 – D4. Ceres set a goal to steal/embezzle $1 to $1.2 Trillion per year (the
number increased since the filing of the Complaint), calling this an “investment in clean energy”:
11
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“In order to limit global warming to below 2°C and avoid the worst effects of climate change,
the world needs to invest more than an additional $1 trillion per year in clean energy through
2050 – the ‘Clean Trillion’” (Exhibit D1).
Ceres does not explain what it means by “global warming,” how it intends to measure it, who told it
“to limit global warming,” or where the magic number “2°C” comes from. Neither does Ceres explain
what it means by “clean energy.”4 The Defendants frequently apply the moniker “clean energy” to
electricity generation facilities using wind, solar, waves, tide, geothermal, or wood burning. None of
these power sources can provide a continuous and reliable electrical power supply, even with
astronomically high subsidies. Apparently, Defendant Ceres thinks that “clean energy” is generated
when money from the pension funds and other public assets flows into pockets of the Defendants and
their allies.
I must stress that Ceres does not just advocate shifting public money, but is stealing/embezzling it in
real time. To do so, it is using methods previously developed and practiced by some other Defendants.
Its main leverage is the enormous corrupt influence that the Defendants have in the federal
government and governments of many states. Ceres is open about this:
“Meeting the Clean Trillion goal will be a tremendous challenge, but it is achievable if
businesses, investors and policymakers join forces.” (Exhibit D1; my emphasis)
Unfortunately, certain policymakers do join forces with them, as pleaded in para 137-143 of the
Complaint and elsewhere in this Brief. Ceres is unashamed to say that a trillion dollars per year is not a
big number.5 The word “trillion” appears more than 500 times on Ceres’ website.6 One of the tools for
this unprecedented heist is what it calls the Ceres Coalition (Exhibit D3), described in para 150 of the
Complaint. Remarkably, despite all the noise about “clean energy,” none of the members of this
“coalition” are engaged in the research, development, manufacturing, deployment, or operation of any
renewable energy devices or systems.7 Almost all “coalition” members fall into exactly one of the two
categories: 1) public funds (mostly pension and retirement funds) and 2) the Defendants and their
allies.

4

Affidavit, section III.
Exhibit D2
6
Exhibit D4
7
Affidavit, section III
5
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This said, even if Ceres were investing stolen/embezzled money in any “clean energy,” it and all the
other Moving Defendants (who participate in the Ceres Coalition, aid, or benefit from Ceres activities in
other ways) would be still in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 664.

D. Ongoing Attempts to Shut Down National Fossil Fuels Industries.
In 2012, Defendant UCS and a non-Defendant Climate Accountability Institute, both sponsored by
Moving Defendant RBF, organized a workshop, whose participants planned to shut down national fossil
fuels industries and make money in the process. A notorious Matt Pawa participated in this workshop.
Later some of them crossed the line from merely planning to attempting.
A quote from the self-report8 of that workshop shows its dominant paradigm: “’A tobacco fight is now
the climate fight.’” (Ex. C, page 9)
Tobacco is an addictive and extremely harmful substance, and the elimination of smoking was a noble
goal. Attempts to shut down tobacco manufacturers were considered by some groups as legitimate
ways to achieve that goal. Unlike tobacco, fossil fuels (coal, oil, and natural gas) are necessities of our
society, and are not harmful at all. Fossil fuels provide nearly 100% of our transportation needs, more
than 70% of the electrical power, and many essential agricultural fertilizers. Shutting down the fossil
fuel industries would mean death of tens of millions of men, women, and children. The Moving
Defendants are attempting to shut down the national fossil fuels industries to satisfy their greed, lust
for power, and to please their foreign masters, such as WWF-International and certain UN politicians.
Another quote from the self-report:
“[T]his participant [an unnamed lawyer] also emphasized the advantage of asking courts to do
things they are already comfortable doing, noting that ‘Even if your ultimate goal might be to
shut down a company, you still might be wise to start out by asking for compensation for
injured parties’” (Exhibit C, page 13).
The participants in the “workshop” also planned to file SLAPP suits against those who disagreed with
them:
“Pennsylvania State University’s Michael Mann, for instance, has worked with a lawyer to
threaten libel lawsuits for some of the things written about him in the media, and has already
won one such case in Canada” (Exhibit C, page 13).
8

Exhibit C
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Collusive misconduct of the Moving Defendants with Michael Mann is described in paras 119–133 of
the Complaint. The participants in the workshop also acknowledged that they did not have grounds for
legal actions, and would have to manipulate courts to achieve their goals:
“A few principles emerged from the long fight for tobacco control. First, any legal strategies
involving court cases require plaintiffs, a venue, and law firms willing to litigate—all of which
present significant hurdles to overcome” (Exhibit C, page 7).
“Among the issues discussed were the importance of seeking documents in the discovery
process as well as the need to choose plaintiffs, defendants, and legal remedies wisely” (Exhibit
C, page 11).
Certainly, by injuring almost all citizens of this country, the Defendants have chosen their opposing
plaintiffs unwisely.
The participants in the workshop also wanted to target all industries that could be reached through the
“fossil fuels” lever, including utilities distributing electricity from nuclear, hydro, and even wind power:
“Participants weighed the merits of legal strategies that target major carbon emitters, such as
utilities, versus those that target carbon producers, such as coal, oil, and natural gas
companies” (Exhibit C, page 12).
“Richard Ayres, an experienced environmental attorney, suggested that the RICO Act, which
had been used effectively against the tobacco industry, could similarly be used to bring a
lawsuit against carbon producers. … It is not even clear, he added, whether plaintiffs need to
show they were actually harmed by the defendant’s actions” (Exhibit C, page 13).
This is in stark contrast to the position of the Moving Defendants, who demand me to plead the harm
from their actions with particularity.
“Mary Christina Wood, professor of law at the University of Oregon, discussed her involvement
with so-called atmospheric trust litigation, a legal strategy she pioneered … Wood noted that
this legal action has several promising features: it is being brought by children …” (Exhibit C,
page 14).
Fighting while hiding behind children is a despicable practice, usually conducted by terrorist
organizations. The discussed self-report devoted a whole section, entitled “Atmospheric Trust
Litigation,” to this “legal strategy,” thereby approving and promoting it. Any illusions that the
14
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participants in the workshop or the Defendants supporting them might have a “good cause” should
disappear after reading this self-report. Each Moving Defendant aided the participants and/or
organizers of the “workshop” or knowingly benefitted from it. And here is the key to the recent action:
“State attorneys general can also subpoena documents, raising the possibility that a single
sympathetic state attorney general might have substantial success in bringing key internal
documents to light” (Exhibit C, page 11).

E. Court Order on Related Activities
An AGs United for Clean Power Press Conference (the “AGUCP Conference”) took place on March 29,
2016 in New York. Unbelievably, Moving Defendants GIM-UK and GIM-US openly participated in this
conference, represented by private citizen Gore. The participants in the AGUCP Conference declared
their support to the cause of the Climate Alarmism Enterprise. Later, most of the 19 participating state
Attorneys General renounced their participation in the AGUCP Conference. Attorneys General of
multiple states, including Texas, condemned the actions that were announced at the AGUCP
Conference. But NY Attorney General Schneiderman, MA Attorney General Healey, and the putative
Attorney General of the U.S. Virgin Islands Claude Walker agreed to act as “sympathetic attorneys
general” (in the words of the self-report from the workshop), and issued multiple subpoenas and civil
investigative requests to Exxon Mobil and independent political associations.9 They demanded
information about multiple political organizations that opposed the Democratic Party or were
concerned with national defense.10 They also demanded all information about a number of named
scientists and advocates of climate realism, and, incredibly, “any other persons conducting research or
advocacy concerning Climate Change”11 (that includes me). The requested documents included
“sound, radio, and video signals,” “verbal expression[s],” and “gesture[s].”12 These demands extended
to all Exxon subsidiaries and affiliates, not excluding individual gas stations or security video recordings
made at these stations,13 and covered all states, including Texas (and thus including the Northern
District of Texas), from 1977 to the subpoena date. Remarkably, Africa Fighting Malaria (whose
director criticized Defendants WWF for their opposition to use DDT in malaria control14) was one of the
organizations targeted by these AGs.
9

Also, mentioned in the Response #24, pp.1-2
Exhibit J, pp. 12-14
11
Exhibit J, p. 14
12
Ex. J, p. 9
13
Ex. J, p. 10
14
Affidavit, p.3
10
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In Exxon v AG Healey (4:16-cv-00469-K), currently pending before this Court (the Fort Worth division),
the Court established improper relations between some Moving Defendants and certain governmental
officials, and issued an order of discovery against the Massachusetts Attorney General. The order
(4:16-cv-00469-K Order #73) said, inter alia:
“Attorney General Healey’s actions leading up to the issuance of the CID causes the Court
concern and presents the Court with the question of whether Attorney General Healey issued
the CID with bias or prejudgment about what the investigation of Exxon would discover.
Prior to the issuance of the CID, Attorney General Healey and several other attorneys general
participated in the AGs United for Clean Power Press Conference on March 29, 2016 in New
York, New York. Notably, the morning before the AGs United for Clean Power Press Conference,
Attorney General Healey and other attorneys general allegedly attended a closed door meeting.
At the meeting, Attorney General Healey and the other attorneys general listened to
presentations from a global warming activist and an environmental attorney that has a wellknown global warming litigation practice. Both presenters allegedly discussed the importance
of taking action in the fight against climate change and engaging in global warming litigation.
One of the presenters, Matthew Pawa of Pawa Law Group, P.C., has allegedly previously sued
Exxon for being a cause of global warming. After the closed door meeting, Pawa emailed the
New York Attorney General’s office to ask how he should respond if asked by a Wall Street
Journal reporter whether he attended the meeting with the attorneys general. The New York
Attorney General’s office responded by instructing Pawa “to not confirm that [he] attended or
otherwise discuss” the meeting he had with the attorneys general the morning before the press
conference.
During the hour long AGs United for Clean Power Press Conference, the attorneys general
discussed ways to solve issues with legislation pertaining to climate change. Attorney General
Eric Schneiderman of New York and Attorney General Claude Walker of the United States Virgin
Islands announced at the press conference that their offices were investigating Exxon for
consumer and securities fraud relating to climate change as a way to solve the problem.
Defendant Attorney General Healey also spoke at the AGs United for Clean Power Press
Conference. During Attorney General Healey’s speech, she stated that ‘[f]ossil fuel companies
that deceived investors and consumers about the dangers of climate change should be, must
be, held accountable.’ … Subsequently, on April 19, 2016, Attorney General Healey issued the
16
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CID to Exxon to investigate whether Exxon committed consumer and securities fraud on the
citizens of Massachusetts.
The Court finds the allegations about Attorney General Healey and the anticipatory nature of
Attorney General Healey’s remarks about the outcome of the Exxon investigation to be
concerning to this Court.”

F. The Oregon Petition
The Oregon Petition, attached as Exhibit F1, was initiated by several distinguished scientists in 1998,
and was signed by more than 31,000 other scientists and experts by 2009. It refuted the alarmist
claims used by the Defendants to justify their illegal activities. Since at least 2009, the Petition,
including the names of more than 31,000 scientists and experts who signed it, has been available on
the Internet,15 and is known to all the Defendants. Some Defendants were aware of the Petition and
knew the names of the signatories continuously from 1998.

G. Pretextual Solicitation of Privileged Information
Few hours after this lawsuit appeared in ECF, I was called by a journalist affiliated with ABC News.16
The journalist claimed he had read the complaint and was preparing a radio broadcast about it, and
asked me how I was injured in Lubbock. He asked this question at least four times and attempted to
record my answers. He did not ask any other questions about the complaint.
His version of the events is unbelievable. The Complaint describes an ongoing embezzlement in the
amount of $18 Trillion, naming the businesses of former Vice President Gore, some of the wealthiest
foundations, and several controversial “nonprofits” as Defendants, engages the extremely reportable
subject of the so-called “climate change,” and mentions the possibility of Treason (para 177) – and a
journalist claiming to cover the lawsuit has no interest in any of these matters? Whatever his political
views or opinions on the lawsuit were, a journalist interviewing a plaintiff for a broadcast or an article
would ask about these matters.
Most likely, some Defendants learnt of the lawsuit, studied the Complaint, and decided on a strategy
to get it dismissed for improper venue. These Defendants understood that this Court was the proper
venue, so they devised and attempted to execute a frame-up scheme. They hired the journalist (or
ABC News, employing him in a local affiliate) to ask me questions to elicit replies, which could be used
15
16

Affidavit, section IV.
Affidavit, section V.
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to allege that the venue was improper. For example, my answers to the questions about my injuries
were likely to be incomplete, as I am not obligated to give complete answers to journalists. Defendant
Greenpeace was recently caught in a more serious frame-up attempt against Prof. William Happer on
the eve of his testimony before Congress.
Two things are shocking about this incident. The first is the effectiveness of the Climate Alarmism
Enterprise. Within hours, it assessed and analyzed new information, decided, and acted. The second is
the extent of the infiltration by the Climate Alarmism Enterprise into our media, including national TV
networks. Obviously, the Defendants could not approach a random journalist from a national network
with an offer to do a frame-up job for them. And Lubbock is not San Francisco. Nevertheless, even in
Lubbock the Climate Alarmism Enterprise had a “sympathetic” journalist or a whole broadcast station,
affiliated with a national network but still ready and willing to do dirty work for the Defendants. This
might be coincidence, but it might also be an indication of a network of agents.
This conclusion is reinforced by reading the article published by the media outlet that was doing this
frame-up for Defendants.17 The article parrots the Defendants’ legal theory, ignores or distorts factual
allegations of the Complaint, and insinuates that the Complaint relied on a “conspiracy theory.”

H. Adoption of a Previous Response by Reference
I adopt my Response to the previous WWF-US Motion (ECF #24) by reference.

IV.

Request under Rule 12(b)(6) shall be Denied

The Complaint states a claim for relief in accordance with Rules 8(a) and 8(d), meeting and exceeding
all requirements under Twombly and Iqbal. The Complaint states a claim for relief against all
Defendants under RICO, 18 U.S.C. §§ 1962(c), (a), and (d). Rule 8(d) demands “pleading to be concise.”
Given the enormous size of the Climate Alarmism Enterprise, the sheer number and sophistication of
its participants, the severity and diversity of the misconduct committed by its leaders and members,
the foreign control of this corrupt enterprise, and its enormous influence and power, concise pleading
by an inexperienced pro se plaintiff might create an incorrect impression that the allegations are not
well-pleaded or even not plausible. The Moving Defendants have nothing to say on the substance of

17
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the pleadings, so they skillfully amplify this impression, while still complaining about the length of the
Complaint.
The Defendants attempt to cast doubt on the Complaint under Rule 12(b)(6), alleging: (a) failure to
plausibly allege any predicate acts of racketeering by Defendants; (b) failure to plausibly allege that the
alleged criminal enterprise took any actions distinct from those of the individual defendants; (c) failure
to establish that Plaintiff suffered what they called “cognizable injury” to confer standing under civil
RICO; (d) the civil RICO’s statute of limitations, and e) the First Amendment protection for their actions.
The Defendants are wrong in all these allegations.

A. Predicate Acts & Pattern of Racketeering by each Defendant is pleaded adequately
1) It is enough to plead factually and plausibly two related predicate acts defined in 18 U.S. Code §
1961, and committed by a Defendant over any 10-year period in order to show the pattern of
racketeering activity by the Defendant. The Complaint pleads factually and plausibly tens of
thousands of such acts over 2006-2016, for each Moving Defendant.
For example, the complaint names five scientists against whom the Moving Defendants retaliated
for attending and testifying at official proceedings (para 93). The official proceedings are perfectly
identified by their topic (para 92), even if not always by the title and date. Multiple acts of
retaliation against these scientists are alleged. All these are plausible facts, and the pleadings give
sufficient notice to each Defendant to answer these allegations.
By the way, most organizations would be able to deny allegations of retaliation against witnesses
without even reading them. The Moving Defendants are not entitled for more detailed pleadings
than established by Rule 8, as interpreted in Twombly and Iqbal. In other words, the Complaint is
required neither to inform the Moving Defendants what is known about their retaliations against
witnesses nor to instruct them on how to commit crimes without getting caught.
The same holds for the rest of the pleadings. They contain notice and plausible facts. No
particularity is required.
2) Heightened pleading standards under Rule 9(b) do not apply to pleadings of embezzlement under
18 U.S. Code § 664 in this case. In the decision on Tel-Phonic Servs., Inc. v. TBS Int’l, Inc., 975 F.2d
1134, 1138 (5th Cir. 1992), misleadingly cited by the Moving Defendants, the only alleged RICO
predicate acts were mail fraud and wire fraud. The decision suggested did not extend to anything
like “sounds in fraud.” Rule 9(b)’s particularity requirements apply only to allegations of mail fraud
19
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(§ 1361) or wire fraud (§ 1363) as RICO predicate acts. They do not apply to allegations of
embezzlement under § 664. Eaves v. Designs for Fin., Inc. (S.D.N.Y. 2011) is also not relevant,
because it deals with a specific case where there were allegations of mail fraud, wire fraud, and/or
embezzlement. The full quote: “Where, as here, the alleged predicate acts for a RICO claim are
mail fraud, wire fraud, and/or theft or embezzlement from an employee benefit plan, the plaintiff
must plead the predicate acts with particularity under Rule 9(b).” Obviously, this ruling by a New
York District Court is not persuasive in this case, in which embezzlement merely supplements
retaliation against witness, witness tampering, and other crimes against justice, as pleaded.
The pattern of racketeering activity is pleaded sufficiently in regards to each Moving Defendant,
even based on the allegations of embezzlement under § 664 alone (para 144-155 of the
Complaint.)

B. Climate Alarmism Enterprise
The alleged Climate Alarmism Enterprise is distinct from its members, and is structured for criminal
activity which the Moving Defendants would not be able to commit without the Enterprise. The
alleged Climate Alarmism Enterprise is more than a collection of its members, and its actions have
effects drastically exceeding what each enterprise member could achieve.
The complex structure of the enterprise is pleaded properly (including in paras 45, 47-50, and 56-58 of
the Complaint.) The Moving Defendants do not conduct any legal business, or at least did not state
what the legal business is for which they associated with each other in the highly unusual way pleaded
in the Complaint. It is the responsibility of the moving side to state grounds for dismissal with
particularity.
None of the Defendants alone would be able to make the Big Lie of dangerous anthropogenic climate
change, keep it alive in the free media for more than 25 years despite all the scientific evidence to the
contrary, and convince almost half of the country population that their Big Lie was close to the truth
(para 71 of the Complaint). None of the Defendants alone would be able to operate the huge network
of front groups, continuously repeating the same nonsensical message (para 72-83).
For some actions allegedly committed by some Defendants, the Complaint does not explicitly allege
which Defendants committed them, but provides enough background information to give proper
notice to each Defendant under Rule 8. Each Defendant has more information than me, and possesses
sufficient information about its own activities to answer the respective allegations. The Complaint
pleads certain predicate offenses with extra fine details, illustrating them with examples. Even when
20
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only a single Defendant is mentioned, other Defendants, including all the Moving Defendants are
implicated, in accordance with 18 U.S. Code § 2(a), because they aided, counseled, commanded,
induced or procured these offenses, even if the Climate Alarmism Enterprise is disregarded (paras 1539 and 47-53 of the Complaint.)

C. Plaintiff’s Injury by Reason of Defendant’s Misconduct
At this point, sufficiency of the pleadings regarding the existence of the criminal Climate Alarmism
Enterprise, and the pattern of racketeering activity by each of the Moving Defendants in connection to
this criminal enterprise, is clearly established. The Complaint pleads two kinds of injury, each of them
sufficient to establish standing, and pleaded to satisfy Sedima requirements.
1) Damages that the Defendants inflicted on me as well as on the public, including but not limited to
embezzlement from pension and welfare funds (para 170 and 175 of the Complaint.) Especially, 18
U.S. Code § 664 covers not only embezzlement, but also stealing, and all other unlawful methods
that a person might use to “abstract[] or convert[] to his own use or to the use of another” assets
of pension and welfare funds that are subject to ERISA. It also covers any funds connected with the
protected pension and welfare funds, even if they are not subject to ERISA. Thus, the Defendants’
opinion that some funds from which they allegedly embezzled are not subject to ERISA and stealing
from them is not violation of 18 U.S. Code § 664 is moot. Further, pension funds are explicitly
targeted by Ceres, as can be seen from the pie chart on the bottom of Exhibit D1 (the bottom
segment – Pension Funds, $22.8 Trillion.)
Like almost every American, I have a Social Security Account. I can request and receive the account
statement at any time. The Social Security Trust Funds are trust funds for all matters. The ways in
which I may use my social security account are severely limited by the law, and some benefits may
be available to me only in the future, if at all. Nevertheless, some of them are available to me at
any moment, and some others are used by me continuously. For example, I use my Social Security
Account to support widows, disabled, and other persons less lucky than me, although the specific
decisions on whom and how to support is in the hands of lawmakers. Thus, the damage I suffered
by reason of Defendants’ action is real, current, and quantifiable, rather than future or speculative.
The Moving Defendants are correct that Social Security Funds must be invested in the special
government bonds. The value of these assets is linked to the ability of the government to perform
on these bonds without resorting to excessive “money printing”, which, in turn depends on the net
liquid assets of the US government and its taxable base, net of its commitments (explicit and
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implicit) to save states from bankruptcy and make good on at least some promises of certain union
and other “privileged” funds. The Complaint pleads facts that indicate that the Moving Defendants
steal or attempt to steal from pension/welfare plans, as well as from certain states’ governments
and “privileged” funds, including but not limited to using Ceres Coalition (paras 144-155.) The
Moving Defendants call this factual pleading frivolous, although it is true and shall be accepted as
truth in establishing sufficiency of pleadings under Rule 12(b)(6).
In an ordinary case, an individual would not have standing in relation to the losses that his Social
Security Account suffered when actions of the Defendants caused devaluation of its holdings. But
this case is extraordinary for at least two reasons: a) the Defendants interfere into all parts of the
chain Social Security (owns government bonds) – the Government (owns assets, has income stream
from the tax base, has commitments to the states and “privileged” funds) – state treasuries &
“privileged” funds, thereby piercing any separation; and b) huge size of the attempted
embezzlement, exceeding $60,000 per person, counting all American citizens including babies. The
Complaint argues that these actions by the Moving Defendants are sufficient on its own to
establish my standing, because the Moving Defendants (para 155), and the Moving Defendants do
not oppose this argument. By calling these detailed pleadings implausible, incomprehensible, or
even “outlandish”, the Moving Defendants essentially admit extraordinary nature of their own
actions.
There might be tens of millions of citizens with the same standing as mine to sue the Defendants
for their actions involving violations of § 664. That does not diminish my standing. Other way
around, that lowers barriers to establishing standing, because 18 U.S. Code § 1964(c) specifically
grants victims of racketeering activity standing to act as “private attorney generals” in prosecuting
that racketeering activity (Rotella v. Wood, 528 U.S. 549, 556; 2000).
2) Damages that the Defendants inflicted on me by focused targeting, including but not limited to
their campaign of witness tampering (para 171-174 of the Complaint.) Contrary to the argument
by the Moving Defendants, tampering with a witness happens prior to the witness testimony, by
definition. I am qualified to be a witness, and the Defendants injured me in my business and
property in at least two ways: a) by intentionally tampering with me as a potential witness, and b)
by committing various predicate crimes, having injured me, unrelated to my qualifications or desire
to be a witness. These damages are alleged to be at least $30,000 from lost wages or other income
just from January 1 through August 31, 2016. The Defendants incorrectly characterized these
damages as a “reputational injury”. The Defendants did not and could not injure my reputation. As
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pleaded in paras 178-206, the Defendants injured my business (software engineering) by reason of
multiple violations of 18 U.S. Code § 1962, which are properly pleaded, and therefore I may sue
them in any appropriate United States district court, per 18 U.S. Code § 1965(c). In Varela v.
Gonzales, 773 F.3d 704 (5th Cir. 2014) the plaintiffs attempted to use RICO against their former
employer for their allegedly “depressed wages,” and lost. That case is totally unrelated, as are
most other cases cited by the Moving Defendants. In contrast, the Complaint in this case pleads a
precise timeframe, amount of damages, and the actions of all Defendants that have caused the
damage: “The Defendants contacted multiple companies in Texas and other states, demanding
them that they not hire Plaintiff and not to do any business with Plaintiff.” This pleading is factual,
plausible (in the light of the rest of the Complaint), and provides sufficient notice to the
Defendants. In fact, it is more than sufficient notice, given the propensity of the Defendants to
retaliate against witnesses and victims, and to tamper with them.
The pleading that I am a “climate denier,” in the terminology of the Defendants, and “easily
recognized as such within seconds by anybody with Internet access” shall be accepted as true in
consideration of sufficiency of pleadings. Additionally, I am attaching a screenshot of a web search
for my name and TX (Exhibit G1), where the second result starts with the words “Climate skeptic”
(a non-offensive equivalent of “climate denier”). Clicking on this result sends the visitor to the full
article (Exhibit G2) in one of the smaller mouthpieces of climate alarmism. That positively proves
that I am recognized as a “climate skeptic” within seconds. Remarkably, the footer under the
article triumphantly announces that “Big brands back away from climate change sceptic think
tanks” and “US coal major Peabody files for bankruptcy”, and some Defendants and their front
groups claim responsibility for that elsewhere.
The amount grew after filing the lawsuit, especially after I had been targeted by the Defendants in
a local frame-up attempt, an action that caused me to lose my only source of income. The
Defendants make centralized decisions about attack targets, and unleash their front groups and
corrupt officials (including US Senators, state Attorneys General, and the Securities and Exchange
Commission) in perfectly coordinated attacks against businesses and non-profits which they
identify as associated with “climate skeptics” (para 105-107, 141-142, and 166 of the Complaint,
and Section IV of this Response.) As an honest person, I cannot apply to a job or solicit a contract
without telling the prospective employer or client about the enormous risk of associating with me,
and nobody would hire or contract with me knowing of such risk.
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D. Civil RICO’s Statute of Limitations
The four-year Civil RICO’s statute of limitations has not even started because the Moving Defendants
have been engaged in each alleged misconduct continuously, even if the specified Defendants started
some types of misconduct as early as 1988. In any case, I did not discover any of the damages until
2015 or later.

E. The First Amendment “Defense”
By mentioning the First Amendment, the Defendants just add insult to injury: the main thrust of the
Defendants’ activities was to deny First Amendment rights to their opponents. Operating a criminal
enterprise always involves speech, but this is not kind of speech protected by the First Amendment.
The alleged predicate acts – from retaliation against witnesses to embezzlement from pension funds –
do not even come close to anything protected by the First Amendment. Many of the Defendants
simply brandish their non-profit and charitable registrations, and persist in the delusion that such
registration puts them above the law.
Especially troubling is that the Defendants imagine they may use hurtful speech (Defendants’ Brief #40,
p. 31) and what they compare to “intentional infliction of emotional distress” (#40, p. 34) to retaliate
against witnesses and victims. 18 U.S. Code § 1513(b) states clearly: “Whoever knowingly engages in
any conduct and thereby causes bodily injury to another person or damages the tangible property of
another person, or threatens to do so, with intent to retaliate against any person for— (1) the
attendance of a witness or party at an official proceeding, or any testimony given … in an official
proceeding; … or attempts to do so, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20
years, or both.” The term “bodily injury” includes, per 18 U.S. Code § 1515(b), any illness and any injury
to the body, no matter how temporary.
The Complaint pleads retaliation against witnesses by the Moving Defendants in many ways, including
destruction of tangible property and threats of physical violence. But even the conduct which the
Moving Defendants incorrectly called “speech” constitutes retaliation against witness under 18 U.S.
Code § 1513, since it had the intent of retaliating against expert witnesses (many of whom were not
even public persons and did not have any contact with the Moving Defendants) for attending and
testifying in public proceedings, and the Moving Defendants caused or attempted to cause bodily
injury to these witnesses.
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By invoking the First Amendment, the Moving Defendants attempt to blur the line between them and
their front groups and media accessories. The front groups, who published target lists of expert
witnesses, incited hot heads, and disseminated hurtful smears, might be perfectly protected by the
First Amendment. But the Moving Defendants, who directed and orchestrated the activities of the
front groups with intent to retaliate against witnesses or to tamper with witnesses, cannot claim such
protection.
No allegation against any Defendant is related to their advocacy. For example, the allegations against
all the Moving Defendants in connection with Ceres Coalition are related to their corrupt influence
(possibly including bribery under § 201) on the politicians in state governments and unions to steal,
embezzle, or otherwise convert public assets entrusted to them to the benefit of the Defendants and
their allies.

F. General
I reject all other allegations by the Moving Defendants, not addressed specifically, and ask this Court to
take notice of the Defendants’ propensity to retell cases wrongly and even to cite authorities
inaccurately and severely out of context. The Moving Defendants also mix arguments for a more
definite statement into the request to dismiss for failure to state a claim.

G. Defendants Have Not Denied Retaliation against Witnesses, Victims, or Informants
The Complaint pleads with particularity multiple cases of violation by each Moving Defendant of 18
U.S. Code § 1513 (Retaliating against a witness, victim, or an informant). Each Moving Defendant filed
multiple motions, and had plenty of opportunities to deny these specific allegations. Further, the
Moving Defendants mocked me in their motions in front of this Court, knowing well that I was both a
witness and a victim. Thus, each Moving Defendant demonstrated their disregard for 18 U.S. Code §
1513, and the likelihood that they would resort to retaliating against witnesses or victims in the future.
This demonstration puts them into a league of their own, making irrelevant any potential precedent
that might have spoken in their favor, unless such potential precedent had pleadings of retaliation
against a witness under 18 U.S. Code § 1513, not denied by the defendant.

H. Construing the Pleadings under Rule 12(e)
I ask this Court to construe the pleadings in the Complaint under Rule 12(e): “Pleadings must be
construed so as to do justice.”
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Additional Reasons to Deny Motion by WWF-US

On 10/07, WWF-US filed its Motion to Dismiss #21, in which it accepted the jurisdiction and venue of
this Court.18 In the same motion, it requested to dismiss the Complaint for a failure to state a claim.19
After my response, it filed the current Motion to Dismiss #36, attempting to re-open the settled
questions of the jurisdiction and venue, and moving to dismiss the Complaint for a failure to state a
claim again. These are violations of Rule 12, sufficient to deny Motion #36.
Further, WWF-US did not request a leave to exceed the 25-page limit, did not give me an opportunity
to oppose such a request, and was not granted a leave to exceed the page limit. Nevertheless, it
incorporated into its 17-page Motion #36 a separate Motion #39, accompanied by a 37-page Brief filed
by other Moving Defendants. Thus, WWF-US filed a 54-page Motion to Dismiss, more than twice the
page limit. This is another reason to deny WWF-US Motion #36.

VI.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons and other consideration of the law and justice, I respectfully request that
this Court denies the Motion in its entirety, and provides me all other relief, in law or in equity, to
which I am justly entitled.
Dated November 2, 2016.
/s/ Leonid Goldstein
Leonid Goldstein, pro se
12501 Tech Ridge Blvd., #1535
Austin, TX 78753
(408) 921-1110
ah@defyccc.com

18
19

Response #24, p. 10
Response #24
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that on November 2, 2016, I caused the foregoing document to be electronically
transmitted to the Clerk of the Court using the ECF system for filing. A Notice of Electronic Filing was
transmitted to all ECF registrants.

/s/ Leonid Goldstein
Leonid Goldstein, pro se
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